
AGENDA 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2024 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

Page 1 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Planning and Zoning Commission will be held on April 11, 
2024, at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the 
City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting: 
  
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form 
and give to the Assistant City Manager prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow 
a place for comments. 
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City 
Manager at kent@lucastexas.us no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must 
contain the person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments 
will be made. Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for a single vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for 
a separate vote. 
 
1. Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the March 14, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
2. Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 

Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract 
of land located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise 
known as 950 West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. (Presenter: Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 



 Page 2 
 

Executive Session  
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning Commission may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
3. Executive Session: There is not an executive session scheduled for this meeting. 
 
Adjournment 
 

 
4. Adjournment. 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on 
April 5, 2024. 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City Manager 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Assistant City 
Manager Kent Souriyasak at 972-912-1213 or by email at kent@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
April 11, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the March 14, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the March 14, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda as presented. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 



1 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  M a r c h  1 4 ,  2 0 2 4  

MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

March 14, 2024 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 
Commissioners Present: 

 
Staff Present: 

Chairman Tommy Tolson 
Commissioner James Foster 
Alternate Commissioner Sean Alwardt 
Alternate Commissioner John Awezec 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
Vice-Chairman Joe Williams 
Commissioner Chris Bierman 
Commissioner Frank Hise 
 

City Manager Joni Clarke 
Assistant City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Staff Absent: 
City Attorney Courtney Morris 
 
City Council Liaison Absent: 
Mayor Jim Olk 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Chairman Tolson indicated both alternate commissioners will act as voting members. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
1. Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 8, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 

 
Alternate Commissioner Awezec proposed corrections to the minutes under Item #3 including the 
terms “electric vehicle assembly” and “constructed.” 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Alternate Commissioner Awezec, seconded by Alternate 

Commissioner Alwardt to approve the consent agenda with corrections. The motion 
passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote. 

 
Public Hearing Agenda 
 
2. Conduct a public hearing and consider the request submitted by Gouri R. Joshi on 

behalf of Our Haven Investment Property, LLC to rezone a parcel of land from R-2 
(Single-family residential 2-acre lots) to R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots) 
being all of a 32.80 tract of land situated in the J. Thompson Survey, Abstract Number 
893, located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, 
otherwise known as Cameron Estates. 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn. 
B. Conduct public hearing. 
C. Take action on the rezoning request. 



2 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  M a r c h  1 4 ,  2 0 2 4  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on this item. 
 
Samir Shrestha, P.E. with KNS Engineering in Colleyville, provided information regarding the 
additional lots and detention pond. 
 
Chairman Tolson opened the public hearing at 6:40 pm. 
 
Chairman Tolson read public comment emails submitted by John Glorieux and Laurie Glorieux at 
1110 Snider Lane who were in opposition to this item. 
 
Chairman Tolson closed the public hearing at 6:42 pm. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed concerns regarding the request and lot sizes. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Alternate Commissioner 

Alwardt to deny the request submitted by Gouri R. Joshi on behalf of Our Haven 
Investment Property, LLC to rezone a parcel of land from R-2 (Single-family 
residential 2-acre lots) to R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots) being all of a 32.80 
tract of land situated in the J. Thompson Survey, Abstract Number 893, located at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, otherwise known 
as Cameron Estates. The motion passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
3. Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 

Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre 
tract of land located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, 
otherwise known as 950 West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on this item. 
 
Chairman Tolson indicated concerns regarding the platting, private road easement and it does not 
meet requirements in the code of ordinances. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed postponing this item so the City Attorney can 
further review and the developer can be present to answer questions at the next meeting. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Alternate Commissioner 

Alwardt to postpone the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest 
Grove Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-
acre tract of land located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 
13, otherwise known as 950 West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. The motion 
passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote. 

 
Executive Session 
 
4. Executive Session: There is not an executive session scheduled for this meeting. 
 
5. Adjournment. 
 



3 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  M a r c h  1 4 ,  2 0 2 4  

Chairman Tolson adjourned the meeting at 7:03 pm. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tommy Tolson, Chairman Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City Manager 



Item No. 02 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
April 11, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove Lucas, LLC 
for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land located in the 
John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 West Forest 
Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 
 
Background Information  
 
The request for the minor plat is to create two lots from an existing tract of land. The lots are 
currently zoned R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots). The plat creates two lots slightly larger 
than the required minimum of one acre. The lots use the existing frontage on West Forest Grove 
Road and there is a right-of-way dedication. The project uses the existing water main and the 
drainage calculations are shown on the minor plat. 
 
On March 14, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission postponed this request so the developer 
can address concerns of the minor plat and be present at the next meeting. Per staff 
recommendation, the developer made the following changes to the minor plat: 
 

• Increasing the easement on the west side of Lot 1 to 24 feet instead of 20 feet to comply 
with Section 10.03.123(b) in the City’s Code of Ordinances regarding private roads: 
 

o A minimum pavement width of 24 feet constructed in accordance with the paving 
design manual; 

o A minimum width of 50 feet and contained within an access, drainage, and utility 
easement; 

o Shall be in a separated lot dedicated to and maintained by an HOA; and 
o Shall be the same design, engineering, and planning requirements as a city street. 

 
• Platting the remainder of Tract 13 to show the remainder of the 7.333-acre tract. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Location Map 
2. Updated Minor Plat 
3. Minor Plat Application and Checklist 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
  



Item No. 02 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
April 11, 2024 

 
 

 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the minor plat as presented.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 
Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land 
located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 
West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 



Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri
Community Maps contributors, Map layer by Esri

Legend

Lucas Parcels

Date: 10/3/2023

0 0.04 0.090.02

mi

±

CASPIAN ESTATES: LOCATION MAP


















































	00 - Agenda
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	Adjournment
	Certification

	01 - Consent Agenda CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	01a - 03-14-2024 Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
	02 - Caspian Estates Minor Plat CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02a - Caspian Estates Location Map
	02b - Caspian Estates minor plat
	02c - Caspian Estates Minor Plat Application and Checklist

